
 
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2011 

7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 OATHS OF OFFICE – PIQUA FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

 ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF VINCENT P. ASHCRAFT 
 

 FIRE CAPTAIN F. JOHN KENDALL, JR. 
 
 

INTRODUCTION OF WESTERN OHIO TV CONSORTIUM (WOTVC) EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR:    

 Mr. Guy Fogle 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
  

AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  
  
a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

  Approval of the minutes from the January 4, 2011 Regular City Commission Meeting 
  
      BB..    OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  

  
                a. ORD. NO. 35-10 (3rd Reading) 
  An Ordinance to vacate a public alley right of way 
 
     b. ORD. NO. 1-11 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 33-66, relating to the Municipal Income Tax 
 

 
 CC..    NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  

      
     a. RES. NO. R-6-11 

  A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a labor contract with the Fraternal 
 Order of Police (Civilians), Ohio Labor Council, Inc. 
  

    b.    RES. NO. R-7-11 
  A Resolution reappointing Julia (Judy) Terry to the Grow Piqua Now Board 



 2

 
c. RES. NO. R-8-11 

A Resolution appointing Sharon Lyons to the Energy Board 
 

d. RES. NO. R-9-11  
A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Rick Maggert as a City Employee 

 
e. RES. NO. R-10-11 

A Resolution to request the Miami County Board of Elections to set a Special Election on March 1, 
2011 for the purpose of a Recall Election for Commissioner, Lucinda L. Fess, Commissioner 
William Vogt, Commissioner Joe Wilson and Commissioner Julia Terry 
      

DD..  OOTTHHEERR  
  
    
EE..      AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  

 
 

  



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday January 4, 2011 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the December 21, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting  
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that the minutes of the December 
21, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, 
Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 35-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to vacate a public alley right of way 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading on the purchase of the property located on 
either side of the subject alley way and plans to consolidate the parcels into one tract of land.  The 
purpose for combining the parcels is to create one tract of land for the construction of the Power 
System Service Center  
 
Public Comment  
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 35-10. 
 
Ordinance No. 35-10 was given a second reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 1-11 (1ST Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 33-66, relating to the Municipal Income Tax 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the purpose of Ordinance No. 1-11 is to provide funds for the purpose of 
permanent improvements, new equipment, extension and enlargement of municipal services and 
facilities, capital improvements and operating expenses of the City of Piqua. This ordinance is 
requested to change the dates to continue the Municipal Income Tax, stated City Manager Enderle. 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple stated there isn’t a financial impact with 
this Ordinance since the street levy renewal was passed; this is just a housekeeping item.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 1-11. 
 
Ordinance No. 1-11 was given a first reading. 
 
 
 



 2

RES. NO. R-2-11 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids to make certain purchases 
during the 2011 year 
 
City Manager Enderle stated Resolution No. 2-11 is authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to 
advertise for bids to make certain purchases during the 2011 year.  We are required to advertise for 
any capital or operational purchases over $25,000 in a newspaper of local circulation.  At the first 
Commission meeting each year the Purchasing Analyst asks for the Commissions approval to 
advertise for these bids. 
 
There was discussion whether there were any items that were pushed back from the 2010 budget to 
the 2011 budget, Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple explained. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution R-2-11. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-2-11 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-2-11 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-3-11 
 
A Resolution authorizing purchase orders to Chemical Services, F2 Industries, LLC. Marubeni 
Specialty Chemicals, Huron Lime, Inc. and Univar USA for the 2011 purchase of various Water 
Treatment Chemicals 
 
City Manager Enderle stated bids were taken on December 17, 2010 and nineteen bids in total were 
received.  The low bidders are recommended for the award of these bids as stated in the resolution.  
In the past the SWOP4G bid award has been included with this award.  The bid was compiled by the 
Montgomery County Purchasing Office this year, and do not have a bid tab available at this time.  We 
plan to purchase Hydrofluosilicic Acid and Liquid Chlorine this year using their discount. If needed we 
will prepare a separate resolution for the purchase of these two chemicals at a future commission 
meeting, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
There was discussion of the various chemicals and how they are chosen and reviewed for quality.  
Underground Utilities Director Dave Burtner explained how the chemicals are reviewed for quality from 
the different companies they are purchased from.  The purchase of lime from the City of Dayton was 
discussed, and it was stated the City of Dayton might not have any extra lime to sell the City of Piqua 
this year.  City Manager Enderle stated he would look into it and clarify the information, and send the 
Commissioners an email with the information they requested. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-3-11. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-3-11 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-3-11 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-4-11 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Brian Kellogg as a member of the Energy Board 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this Resolution accepts the resignation of Brian Kellogg as a member of 
the Energy Board. 
 



 3

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. 4-11. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-4-11be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Martin, Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-4-11adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-5-11 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Melissa A. Randles as a member of the Tree Committee 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution accepts the resignation of Melissa A. Randles as a 
member of the Tree Committee. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-5-11. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-5-11 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-5-11adopted.  
 
OTHER 
 
Monthly Reports- November 2010 
 
Monthly Reports for the month of November 2010 were accepted. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue, came forward asked citizens to help Piqua Catholic School in their efforts to 
win a $50,000 grant from Pepsi.  Ms. Koon further explained how citizens can support the school in 
their efforts to win the grant.  Piqua Catholic School Community Day will be celebrated on Saturday 
January 15, 2011 downtown at the Gazebo.  Citizens are encouraged to come down and show their 
support.  Mayor Fess encouraged citizens to text their votes in for Piqua Catholic School. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he had received several telephone calls regarding leaf pickup, and 
wanted to let citizens know the City crews are still picking up leaves. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated the Piqua YWCA is hosting the Martin Luther King Celebration on Monday, 
January 17, 2011 from 1:00 – 2:00 P.M. This is free and open to the public and Commissioner Terry 
encouraged citizens to attend. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she wanted to comment on the fact the recall is going forward and voiced 
her concern and opinion on the matter. Commissioner Terry encouraged citizens to come out and 
support the Commissioners and to vote “NO” on the recall 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Commissioner Terry and stated all the Commissioners feel the same way. 
 
Commissioner Vogt voiced his concern and comments over the recall going forward at this time, and 
encouraged citizens to vote “NO” on the recall. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he has been made aware of various potholes in the City streets. 
Commissioner Martin encouraged citizens to report potholes as they see them either by contacting a 
City Commissioner or calling the Street Department to report them.     
 
 



 4

Mayor Fess stated the recall has put the Piqua Community in a very delicate situation.  People all up 
and down I-75 are looking at Piqua and wondering what is going on.  Mayor Fess further explained the 
Commission has been accused of not listening to citizens, and overspending on the computer system. 
Four Work Sessions that were open to the public were held before any decisions were made on the 
purchase of the new computer system.  Mayor Fess gave a brief explanation on the purchase of new 
computer system. Mayor Fess further stated the Commissioners were duly elected and feels the City if 
Piqua having to hold this Special Election is truly a waste of taxpayer’s dollars.   The Commissioners 
care very deeply about the citizens of Piqua and should not be attacked this way, said Mayor Fess.  
There is a community group of businessmen and citizens called Positively Promoting Piqua (PPP) who 
are supporting the City and the Commissioners and are trying to drive the negativity out of the 
Community. A PPP Meeting is scheduled for January 19, 2011 at Hartzell Propeller All Hands Room at 
5:00 P.M. and Mayor Fess encouraged all interested citizens to attend. 
  
Mayor Fess stated she is honored to the Mayor of Piqua, and she cares very deeply for the 
Community. 
 
Adjournment To Executive Session 
 
To consider pending or imminent litigation. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn into Executive Session 
at 8:10 P.M. to consider pending or imminent litigation. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Wilson, 
and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner  Martin, to adjourn from Executive Session 
at 8:23 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 8:23 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 35-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PUBLIC ALLEY RIGHT OF WAY  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. 127-10 declaring its intent to vacate an unimproved public 

alley right of way located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler 

Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open session and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments received and information provided, recommended approving 

the vacation of an unimproved public alley right of way located west of S. Main Street 

between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue, as shown on the exhibit and the 

vacation plat drawing attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of an unimproved public alley right of way 

located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue, as 

shown on the exhibit and the vacation plat drawing attached hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

1st Reading 12-21-2010 

2nd Reading 1-4-2011 
 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of December 21, 2010 

 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 

FROM: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

SUBJECT: Petition to vacate an unimproved platted public alley right‐of‐way 

PURPOSE: 
Approve an Ordinance to vacate an unimproved platted public alley right‐of‐way. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Ordinance to vacate the subject right‐of‐way in accordance with City of Piqua Charter Section 98.  

BACKGROUND: 
The city of Piqua Municipal Power System has purchased the property located on either side of the subject alley 
way and desires to consolidate the parcels into one tract of land.  The purpose for combining the parcels is to 
create one tract large enough to accommodate an improvement project proposed at this site.  The subject right‐
of‐way is currently vacant with no existing surface improvements found at this location.  The primary land use in 
this area is light industrial.     

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance and authorize vacating the subject public right‐of‐way. 
2) Defeat the Ordinance and refuse to vacate the subject public right‐of‐way. 

DISCUSSION: 
The subject alley right‐of‐way is unimproved and there are no adjacent properties that use or depend upon this 
right‐of‐way for access.  Vacating the alley right‐of‐way will allow the property to be combined with the adjoining 
properties to create larger tract suitable for a proposed improvement project. 

Public notification of the public hearing to discuss the proposed public right‐of‐way vacation was provided in 
accordance with the applicable Charter provisions.  At the public hearing conducted by the Planning Commission 
to discuss this item there were no public comments received.  After considering all testimony and information 
provided, the Planning Commission voted 4‐0 in favor of recommending approval of the proposed alley vacation.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Vacating the subject right‐of‐way will have no adverse fiscal impact on the City.  

COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Approval of the right‐of‐way vacation will allow for plans to construct a modern Power System service center at 
this location to move forward, further enhancing the quality and efficiency of the Power System services provided 
to the community.  The proposed vacation would have no adverse affect on the surrounding property owners or 
the interest of the general public. 



 Page 2 
 

CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed vacation is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and policies, including the Goal, 
Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land Use and Utilities chapters of the Plan It Piqua 
Comprehensive Plan document.  











E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

P
ro

po
se

d 
U

ni
m

pr
ov

ed
 A

lle
y 

Va
ca

tio
n

S
TA

TL
E

R
 A

V
E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
LL

E
Y 

VA
C

AT
IO

N



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 1-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 33-66, 
RELATING TO THE MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
SECTION 1.  Ordinance No. 33-66 as enacted July 5, 1966 and as subsequently amended 
by Ordinance Numbers 18-67, 26-71, 28-71, 10-76, 67-78, 76-79, 24-83, 36-84, 29-88, 
20-89, 84-89, 18-90, 7-97, 34-00, 39-00, 27-02, 20-03, and 22-04, and 25-08 is hereby 
amended to read as follows (with deletions lined out and additions underlined): 

 
 

Section 1: Purpose 
 
To provide funds for the purposes of permanent improvements, new equipment, 
extension and enlargement of municipal services and facilities, capital improvements and 
operating expenses of the City of Piqua, there shall be, and is hereby levied, a tax on 
income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, net profits, and other 
taxable income as hereinafter provided. 

 
 

Section 2: Definitions 
 
As used in this ordinance, the following words shall have the meaning ascribed to them in 
this Section, except as and if the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 
 
ADJUSTED FEDERAL TAXABLE INCOME – A C corporation’s federal taxable 
income before net operating losses and special deductions as determined under the 
Internal Revenue Code, adjusted as follows: 
 

a. Deduct intangible income to the extent included in federal taxable income.  
The deduction shall be allowed regardless of whether the intangible income 
relates to assets used in a trade or business or assets held for the production of 
income. 

 
b. Add an amount equal to five percent (5%) of intangible income deducted 

under Section (2)(a), but excluding that portion of intangible income directly 
related to the sale, exchange, or other disposition of property described in 
Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code; 

 
c. Add any losses allowed as a deduction in the computation of federal taxable 

income if the losses directly relate to the sale, exchange, or other disposition 
of an asset described in Section 1221 or 1231 of the Internal Revenue Code; 



 2

d. (1) Except as provided in Section (2)(d)(2) of this section, deduct income and 
gain included in federal taxable income to the extent the income and gain 
directly relate to the sale, exchange, or other disposition of an asset 
described in Section 1221 or 1231 of the Internal Revenue Code; 

 
(2) Section (2)(d)(1) does not apply to the extent the income or gain is income 

or gain described in Section 1245 of 1250 of the internal Revenue Code. 
 

e. Add taxes on or measured by net income allowed as a deduction in the 
computation of federal taxable income; 

 
f. In the case of a real estate investment trust and regulated investment company, 

add all amounts with respect to dividends to, distributions to, or amounts set 
aside for or credited to the benefit of investors and allowed as a deduction in 
the computation of federal taxable income; 

 
g. If the taxpayer is not a C corporation and is not an individual, the taxpayer 

shall compute adjusted federal taxable income as if the taxpayer were a C 
corporation, except; 

 
(1) Guaranteed payments and other similar amounts paid or accrued to a 

partner, former partner, member, or former member shall not be allowed 
as a deductible expense; and 

 
(2) Amounts paid or accrued to a qualified self-employed retirement plan with 

respect to an owner or owner-employee of the taxpayer, amounts paid or 
accrued to or for health insurance for an owner or owner-employee, and 
amounts paid or accrued to or for life insurance for an owner or owner-
employee shall not be allowed as a deduction. 

 
Nothing in Section 2 shall be construed as allowing the taxpayer to add or 
deduct any amount more than once or shall be construed as allowing any 
taxpayer to deduct any amount paid to or accrued for purposes of federal self-
employment tax. 

 
Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as limiting or removing the 
ability of any municipal corporation to administer, audit, and enforce the 
provisions of its municipal income tax. 

 
ADMINISTRATOR – The individual designated by the Director of Finance, with the 
approval of the City Manager, to administer and enforce the provisions of the ordinance. 
 
ASSIGNMENT – The assignment made by a resident of the City of Piqua of claim for 
refund due from another taxing municipality granting credit to non-residents thereof. 
 



 3

ASSOCIATION – A partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company 
(including a single owner LLC), Chapter S corporation as defined in the federal tax code, 
26 U.S.C. 1361, or any other form of unincorporated enterprise owned by two or more 
persons. 
 
BOARD OF REVIEW – The Board created by and constituted as provided in Section 13 
of this ordinance. 
 
BUSINESS – An enterprise, activity, profession or undertaking of any nature conducted 
for profit or ordinarily conducted for profit, whether by an individual, partnership, 
association, corporation or any other entity, including but not limited to the renting or 
leasing of property, real, personal or mixed. 
 
CORPORATION – A corporation or joint stock association organized under the laws of 
the United States, the State of Ohio or any other state, territory or foreign country or 
dependency, but not including Chapter S corporations. 
 
THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE – The Director of Finance of the City of Piqua, Ohio. 
 
DOMICILE – The permanent legal residence of a taxpayer.  A taxpayer may have more 
than one residence, but not more than one domicile. 
 
EMPLOYEE – One who works for qualifying wages, commission or other type of 
compensation in the service of an employer. 
 
EMPLOYER – An individual, partnership, association, corporation, governmental body, 
unit or agency or any other entity, whether or not organized for profit, who or that 
employs one or more persons on a qualifying wage, commission or other compensation 
basis. 
 
FISCAL YEAR – An accounting period of twelve (12) months or less ending on any day 
other than December 31, and used by the taxpayer for Federal Income Tax purposes. 
 
FORM 2106 – The Internal Revenue Service Form 2106 filed by a taxpayer pursuant to 
the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
GROSS RECEIPTS – The total revenue derived from sales, work done, or service 
rendered before any deductions, exceptions or credits are claimed. 
 
INCOME – Shall include all monies derived from any source whatsoever, including but 
not limited to: 
 

a. All qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation and other income 
from whatever source received by residents of Piqua. 

 



 4

b. All qualifying wages, commission, other compensation and other income from 
whatsoever source received by nonresidents for work done or services 
performed or rendered or activities conducted in Piqua. 

 
c. The portion attributable to the city of the net profits of all unincorporated 

businesses, associations, professions, corporations or other entities from sales 
made, work done, services performed or rendered, and business or other 
activities conducted in Piqua. 

 
INTANGIBLE INCOME – Income of any of the following types:  income yield, interest, 
capital gains, dividends, or other income arising from the ownership, sale, exchange, or 
other disposition of intangible property including, but not limited to, investments, 
deposits, money, or credits as those terms are defined in Chapter 5701 of the Ohio 
Revised Code, and patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, investments in real 
estate investment trusts, investments in regulated investment companies, and appreciation 
on deferred compensation.  Intangible income does not include prizes, awards, or other 
income associated with any lottery winnings or other similar games of chance. 
 
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE – The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 100 Stat. 2085, 
26 U.S.C. 1, as amended. 
 
JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – Districts created under the Ohio 
Revised Code sections 715.70 through 715.83, as amended from time to time. 
 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY – A limited liability company formed under Chapter 
1705 of the Ohio Revised Code or under the laws of another state. 
 
MUNICIPALITY – The City of Piqua. 
 
NET PROFITS – A net gain from the operation of a business, profession, enterprise or 
other activity after provision for all ordinary and necessary expenses, either paid or 
accrued in accordance with the accounting system used by the taxpayer for Federal 
Income Tax purposes, without deduction of taxes imposed by this ordinance, federal, 
state and other taxes based on income; and in the case of an association, without 
deduction of qualifying wages paid to partners and other owners; and otherwise adjusted 
to the requirements of this ordinance. 
 
Net profits shall include any amount or value received, realized or recognized in a sale or 
other disposition of tangible personal property or real property used in business, in excess 
of book value. 
 
NON-RESIDENT – An individual domiciled outside the City of Piqua. 
 
NON-RESIDENT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS ENTITY – An unincorporated 
business entity not having an office or place of business within the City of Piqua. 
 



 5

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN – A compensation plan 
described in Section 3121(v)(2)(C) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
PERSON – Every natural person, partnership, fiduciary, association or corporation.  
Whenever used in any clause prescribing and imposing a penalty, the term “person” as 
applied to any unincorporated entity, shall mean the partners or members thereof, and as 
applied to corporations, the officers thereof. 
 
PLACE OF BUSINESS – Any bona fide office (other than a mere statutory office), 
factory, warehouse or other space which is occupied and used by the taxpayer in carrying 
on any business activity, individually or through one or more of his regular employees 
regularly in attendance. 
 
QUALIFIED PLAN – A retirement plan satisfying the requirements under Section 401 of 
the Internal Revenue Code as amended. 
 
QUALIFYING WAGES – Wages, as defined in Section 3121(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code, without regard to any wage limitations, adjusted in accordance with Section 
718.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
RESIDENT – An individual domiciled in the City of Piqua. 
 
RESIDENT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS ENTITY – An unincorporated business 
entity having an office or place of business within the City of Piqua. 
 
RULES AND REGULATIONS – Administrative directives promulgated by the 
Administrator and approved by the Board of Review for the purpose of administering this 
ordinance. 
 
SCHEDULE C – The Internal Revenue Service schedule C filed by a taxpayer pursuant 
to the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
SCHEDULE E – The Internal Revenue Service schedule E filed by a taxpayer pursuant 
to the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
SCHEDULE F – The Internal Revenue Service schedule F filed by a taxpayer pursuant to 
the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
S CORPORATION – A corporation that has made an election under subchapter S of 
Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue Code for its taxable year. 
 
TAXABLE INCOME – Qualifying wages, and other compensation paid by an employer 
or employers before any deductions and/or the net profits from the operation of a 
business, profession or other enterprise or activity adjusted in accordance with the 
provisions of the ordinance.  Please refer to INCOME. 
 



 6

TAXABLE YEAR – The calendar year, or the fiscal year upon the basis of which the net 
profits are to be computed under the ordinance and, in the case of a return for a fractional 
part of a year, the period for which such return is required to be made. 
 
TAXING MUNICIPALITY – Any municipal corporation levying a municipal income tax 
on income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation earned by 
individuals, and on the net profits and other taxable income earned from the operation of 
a business, profession or other activity. 
 
TAXPAYER – A person, whether an individual, partnership, association or any 
corporation or other entity, required under this ordinance to file a return or pay a tax. 

 
 

Section 3: Imposition of Tax 
 
A. Subject to the provisions of Section 16 of this ordinance, an annual tax for the 

purposes specified in Section 1 hereof shall be imposed at the rate of one and three-
fourths percent (1.75%) per annum. 

 
The first one percent (1%) of said tax shall be levied until repealed by this 
commission; the next one-half percent (.5%) until repealed by the electorate; and the 
remaining one-fourth percent (.25%) from January 1, 1991 through December 31, 
2010 2020 and upon: 

   
1. All qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation and other income earned 

or received during the effective period of this ordinance by residents of the City of 
Piqua. 

 
2. All qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation earned and other income 

earned or received during the effective period of this ordinance by nonresidents 
for work done or services performed or rendered in the City of Piqua. 

 
3. a.  The portion attributable to the City of Piqua of the net profits earned or 

received during the effective period of this ordinance, of all resident 
unincorporated businesses, professions or other entities, derived from sales 
made, work done, services performed or rendered and business or other 
activities conducted in the City of Piqua. 

 
b. The portion of the distributive share of net profits earned or received during 

the effective period of this ordinance of a resident partner or owner of a 
resident unincorporated business entity not attributable to the City of Piqua 
and not levied against such unincorporated business entity.  Provided, 
however, that the liability of an individual partner or owner, taxable hereunder 
on income attributable to another taxing municipality, shall be subject to the 
Relief and Reciprocity Provisions of Section 15 hereof. 

 



 7

4. a.  The portion attributable to the City of Piqua of net profits earned or received 
during the effective period of this ordinance of all non-resident unincorporated 
businesses, professions or other entities, derived from sales made, work done 
or services performed or rendered and business or other activities conducted 
in the City of Piqua, whether or not such unincorporated business entity has an 
office or place of business in the City of Piqua. 
 

b.  The portion of the distributive share of net profits earned or received during 
the effective period of this ordinance of a resident partner or owner of a 
nonresident unincorporated business entity not attributable to the City of 
Piqua and not levied against such unincorporated business entity.  Provided, 
however, that the liability of an individual partner or owner taxable hereunder 
on income attributable to another taxing municipality shall be subject to the 
Relief and Reciprocity provisions of Section 15 hereof. 

 
5. The portion attributable to the City of Piqua of net profits earned or received 

during the effective period of this ordinance of all corporations derived from sales 
made, work done, services performed or rendered and business or other activities 
conducted in the City of Piqua, whether or not such corporations have an office or 
place of business in the City of Piqua. 

 
6.  All income received as gambling winnings as reported on IRS Form W-2G, Form 

5754 and or any other Form required by the Internal Revenue Service that reports 
winnings from gambling, prizes and lottery winnings.  Gambling losses are not 
deductible unless losses are supported by an independent verifiable statement. 

 
B. The portion of the net profits attributable to the City of Piqua of a taxpayer 

conducting a business, profession or other activity, both within and without the 
boundaries of the City of Piqua, shall be determined as provided in Section 718.02 of 
the Revised Code of Ohio and in accordance with the Rules and Regulations. 

 
 
C. OPERATING LOSSES  

 
a. The Municipality does not allow a net operating loss carryback or carryforward. 

 
b. Losses from federal schedules and other sources reported for federal income tax 

purposes cannot be used to offset qualifying wages, commissions, other 
compensation and other taxable income earned or received by residents or 
nonresidents of the Municipality. 

 
If an individual is engaged in two or more taxable business activities to be 
included in the same return, the net loss of one unincorporated business activity 
may be used to offset the profits of another (except any portion of a loss or profit 
separately reportable for municipal tax purposes to another taxing entity) for 
purposes of arriving at overall net profits or net operating loss. 



 8

 
D. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS 
 

1. Any affiliated group, which files a consolidated return for federal income tax 
purposes pursuant to Section 1501 of the Internal Revenue Code, may file a 
consolidated return with the City of Piqua.  However, once the affiliated group 
has elected to file a consolidated return or a separate return with Piqua, the 
affiliated group may not change its method of filing in any subsequent tax year 
without written approval from Piqua. 
 

2. In the case of a corporation that carried on transactions with its stockholders or 
with other corporations related by stock ownership, interlocking directorates or 
some other method, or in case any person operates a division, branch, factory, 
office, laboratory or activity within the City of Piqua, constituting a portion only 
of its total business, the Administrator shall require such additional information as 
he may deem necessary to ascertain whether net profits are properly allocated to 
the City of Piqua.  If the Administrator finds net profits are not properly allocated 
to the City of Piqua by reason of transactions with stockholders or with other 
corporations related by stock ownership, interlocking directorates, or transactions 
with such division, branch, factory, office, laboratory or activity or by some other 
method, the Administrator shall make such allocations as the Administrator 
deems appropriate to produce a fair and proper allocation of net profits to the City 
of Piqua. 

 
 

Section 4: Effective Period 
 

The first one percent (1%) of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with respect to 
the income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to 
net profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 1977, and 
until repealed by this Commission. 

 
The next one-half percent (.5%) of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with 
respect to the salaries, wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to 
the net profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 1984 
and until repealed by the electorate. 

 
The remaining one-fourth percent (.25%) of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid 
with respect to the salaries, wages, commissions and other compensation, and with 
respect to the net profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 
1, 1991 through December 31, 2010 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 



 9

Section 5: Return and Payment of Tax 
 

A. Each taxpayer who engages in business or other activity or whose qualifying wages, 
commissions, other compensation and other taxable income is subject to the tax 
imposed by this ordinance, and every resident shall, make and file a return on or 
before April 15th of each year, whether or not a tax is due.  When the return is made 
for a fiscal year or other period different from the calendar year, the return shall be 
filed by the 15th day of the fourth month from the end of such fiscal year or period.  
The Administrator is hereby authorized to provide by regulation in accordance with 
Rules and Regulations that the return of an employer or employers, showing the 
amount of tax deducted by said employer or employers from the qualifying wages, 
commissions, other compensation or other income of nonresident employee, and paid 
by the employer or employers to the Administrator, shall be accepted as the return 
required of any nonresident employee whose sole income, subject to tax under this 
ordinance, is such qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation or other 
income. 

 
 The Administrator shall also have authority to require that certain retired individuals 

may be exempt from this section, providing that no reportable or taxable income 
exists beyond income exempt from taxation as provided by this ordinance. 

 
B. The return shall be filed with the Administrator on a form or forms furnished by or 

obtainable upon request from such Administrator, or on a generic form, setting forth: 
 
1. a. The aggregate amount of qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation 

and other income earned or received; and 
 

b. The gross income from a business, profession or other activity less allowable 
expenses incurred in the acquisition of such gross income; 

 
c. Such income shall include only income earned or received during the year, or 

portion thereof, covered by the return and subject to the tax imposed by this 
ordinance; 

 
2. a. The amount of tax imposed by this ordinance on income reported, 

 
b. Any credits to which the taxpayer may be entitled under the provisions of     

Sections 6, 7 and 15 of this ordinance; and 
 

3. Such other pertinent statements, information returns or other information as the 
Administrator may require. 

 
4. A generic form once completed and filed must contain all of the information 

required to be submitted with Piqua’s prescribed returns, reports or documents, 
and must be in a similar format that will allow processing of the generic forms 
without altering Piqua’s procedures for processing forms.  The taxpayer or return 



 10

preparer filing the generic form must also otherwise comply with the rules or 
ordinances of Piqua governing the filing of returns, reports or documents.  
Determination as to whether a generic form meets this criteria shall be the 
responsibility of the Administrator. 
 

C. The Administrator may extend the time for filing of the annual return upon the 
request of the taxpayer for a period of not to exceed six (6) months, or one (1) month 
beyond any extension requested of or granted by the Internal Revenue Service for 
filing of the Federal Income Tax Return (whichever occurs later).  The Administrator 
may require a tentative return, accompanied by payment of the amount of tax shown 
to be due thereon by the date the return is normally due. 

 
No penalty or interest shall be assessed in those cases in which the return is filed and 
the final tax paid within the period as extended. 

 
D. 1.  The taxpayer making a return shall, at the time of filing thereof, pay to the 

Administrator the balance of tax due, if any, after deducting: 
  

a. The amount of City of Piqua Income Tax deducted or withheld at the source 
pursuant to Section 6 hereof; 

 
b. Such portion of the tax as has been paid on declaration by the taxpayer 

pursuant to Section 7 hereof; 
 

c. Any credit allowable under the provisions of Section 15 hereof. 
 

2. Should the return, or the records of the Administrator, indicate an overpayment of 
the tax to which the City of Piqua is entitled under the provisions of this 
ordinance, such overpayment shall first be applied against any existing liability 
and the balance, if any, at the election of the taxpayer communicated to the 
Administrator, shall be refunded or transferred against any subsequent liability.  
Provided, however, that overpayment of less than five dollars ($5.00) shall not be 
refunded. 

 
E. 1.  AMENDED RETURNS.   Where necessary, an amended return must be filed in 

order to report additional income and pay any additional tax due, or claim a 
refund of tax overpaid, subject to the requirements and/or limitations contained in 
Sections 11 and 15.  Such amended returns shall be on a form obtainable on 
request from the Administrator.  A taxpayer may not change the method of 
accounting or apportionment of net profits after the due date for filing the original 
return. 

 
2. Within three (3) months from the final determination of any federal tax liability 

affecting the taxpayer’s City of Piqua tax liability, such taxpayer shall make and 
file an amended City of Piqua return showing income subject to the City of Piqua 



 11

tax based upon such final determination of federal tax liability, and pay any 
additional tax shown due thereon or make claim for refund of any overpayment. 

 
 

Section 6: Collection at Source 
 
A. 1.  Each employer within or doing business within the City of Piqua who employs 

one or more persons on a qualifying wage, commission, other compensation or 
other income basis shall, at the time of payment thereof, deduct the tax of one and 
three-fourths percent (1.75%) from the qualifying wages, commissions, other 
compensation or other income earned or received by Piqua residents regardless of 
where such compensation was earned or received and shall deduct the tax of one 
and three-fourths percent (1.75%) from the qualifying wages, commissions, other 
compensation or other income earned or received within Piqua by non-residents; 

 
2.  Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph A. 1. of this Section, where such 

employer employs a Piqua resident in another taxing municipality requiring such 
employer to deduct its tax from all employees engaged therein, such employer 
shall withhold for, and remit to, the City of Piqua only the difference, if any, 
between the tax imposed by such other taxing municipality and the tax imposed 
by this ordinance; 

 
3.  Each employer shall, on or before the 15th day of the month or quarter following 

such withholding, make a return and remit to the City of Piqua the tax hereby 
required to be withheld.  Employers shall deposit withholding to the City of Piqua 
on a monthly basis if the tax liability for the previous year equals or exceeds three 
thousand dollars ($3,000.00).  Such return shall be on a form or forms prescribed 
by, or acceptable to, the Administrator and shall be subject to the Rules and 
Regulations.  Such employer shall be liable for the payment of the tax required to 
be deducted and withheld, whether or not such taxes have, in fact, been withheld. 

 
4. On or before the 28th day of February following any calendar year, such employer 

shall file with the Administrator an information return for each employee from 
whom City of Piqua Income Tax has been, or should have been, withheld, 
showing the name, address and Social Security number of the employee, the total 
amount of compensation paid during the year and the amount of City of Piqua 
Income Tax withheld from such employee. 

 
5. An employer is not required to make any withholding with respect to an 

individual’s disqualifying disposition of an incentive stock option if, at the time of 
the disqualifying disposition, the individual is not an employee of the corporation 
with respect to whose stock the option has been issued. 

 
6. a. An employee is not relieved from liability for a tax by the failure of the 

employer to withhold the tax as required by a municipal corporation or by the 
employer’s exemption from the requirements to withhold the tax. 



 12

 
b. The failure of an employer to remit to the municipal corporation the tax 

withheld relieves the employee from liability for that tax unless the employee 
colluded with the employer in connection with the failure to remit the tax 
withheld. 

 
B. Such employer, in collecting said tax, shall be deemed to hold the same until payment 

is made by such employer to the City of Piqua, as a Trustee for the benefit of the City 
of Piqua and any such tax collected by such employer from his employees shall, until 
the same is paid to the City of Piqua, be deemed a trust fund in the hands of such 
employer. 

 
C. All employers that provide any contractual service within Piqua, and who employ 

subcontractors in conjunction with that service, shall provide Piqua the names and 
addresses of the subcontractors.  The subcontractors shall be responsible for all 
income tax withholding requirements under this ordinance. 

 
D. In addition to the wage reporting requirements of this section, any person required by 

the Internal Revenue Service to report on Form 1099-Misc. payments to individuals 
not treated as employees for services performed shall also report such payments to the 
Municipality when the services were performed in the Municipality.  The information 
may be submitted on a listing, and shall include the name, address and social security 
number (or federal identification number), and the amount of the payments made.  
Federal form(s) 1099 may be submitted in lieu of such listing.  The information shall 
be filed annually on or before February 28 following the end of such calendar year. 

 
E. DOMESTIC SERVANTS.  No person shall be required to withhold the tax on the 

qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation, and other taxable income paid 
domestic servants employed exclusively in or about such person’s residence.  
However, such domestic servants shall be responsible for filing and paying their own 
returns and taxes. 

 
 

Section 7: Declarations 
 
A. Every person who anticipates any taxable income which is not subject to Section 6 

hereof, or who engages in any business, profession, enterprise or activity subject to 
the tax imposed by Section 3 hereof shall file a declaration setting forth such 
estimated income of the estimated profit or loss from such business activity, together 
with the estimated tax due thereon, if any. 

 
B. 1. Such declaration shall be filed on or before April 15 of each year during the life of 

this ordinance, except that no penalties or interest shall be assessed, for not filing 
a declaration, on any resident taxpayer who was not domiciled in Piqua on the 
first day of January of the year in which they became subject to estimated 
payments, nor shall penalties or interest be assessed on estimated payments if the 



 13

taxpayer has remitted an amount equal to one hundred percent of the previous 
year’s tax liability, provided that the previous year reflected a twelve-month 
period. 

 
2.  Those taxpayers reporting on a fiscal year basis shall file a declaration within 15 

days of the fourth month after the beginning of each fiscal year or period. 
 
C. 1. Such declaration shall be filed upon a form furnished by, or obtainable from, the 

Administrator, or on a generic form.  Credit shall be taken for Piqua income tax to 
be withheld, if any, from any portion of such income.  In addition, credit may be 
taken for tax payable to other taxing municipalities in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 15 hereof. 

 
2. The original declaration (or any subsequent amendment thereof) may be increased 

or decreased on or before any subsequent quarterly payment date as provided for 
herein. 

 
3. A generic form once completed and filed must contain all of the information 

required to be submitted with Piqua’s prescribed returns, reports or documents, 
and must be in a similar format that will allow processing of the generic forms 
without altering Piqua’s procedures for processing forms.  The taxpayer or return 
preparer filing the generic form must also otherwise comply with the rules or 
ordinances of Piqua governing the filing of returns, reports or documents.  
Determination as to whether a generic form meets this criteria shall be the 
responsibility of the Administrator. 

 
D. The taxpayer making the declaration shall, at the time of the filing thereof, pay to the 

Administrator at least one-fourth (1/4) of the estimated annual tax due after 
deducting: 
 
1. Any portion of such tax to be deducted or withheld at the source pursuant to 

Section 6 hereof; 
 
2. Any credits allowable under the provisions of Section 15 hereof; and 
 
3.  Any overpayment of previous year’s tax liability which taxpayer has not elected to 

have refunded.  Provided, however, the taxpayer may elect to apply any 
overpayment of previous tax liability to any one or more installments of the 
estimated annual tax. 

 
At least a similar amount shall be paid on or before the 15th day of the sixth, ninth and 
thirteenth month after the beginning of taxpayer’s taxable year, provided that in case 
an amended declaration has been duly filed, or the taxpayer is taxable for a portion of 
the year only, the unpaid balance shall be paid in equal installments on or before the 
remaining payment dates. 
 



 14

E. On or before the 15th day of the fourth month of the year following that for which 
such declaration or amended declaration was filed, an annual return shall be filed and 
any balance which may be due the City of Piqua shall be paid therewith in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 5 hereof. 

 
 

Section 8: Duties of the Administrator 
 
A. 1. It shall be the duty of the Administrator to receive the tax imposed by this 

ordinance in the manner prescribed herein from the taxpayers; to keep an accurate 
record thereof; and to report all monies so received to the Director of Finance. 

 
 2. It shall be the duty of the Administrator to enforce payment of all taxes owed the 

City of Piqua, to keep accurate records for a minimum of six (6) years showing 
the amount due from each taxpayer required to file a declaration and/or make any 
return, including taxes withheld, and to show the dates and amounts of payments 
thereof. 

 
B. Said Administrator is hereby charged with the enforcement of the provisions of this 

ordinance, and is hereby empowered, subject to the approval of the Board of Review, 
to adopt and promulgate and to enforce Rules and Regulations relating to any matter 
or thing pertaining to the collection of taxes and the administration and enforcement 
of the provisions of this ordinance, including provisions for the re-examination and 
correction of returns. 

 
C. In any case where a taxpayer has failed to file a return or has filed a return which does 

not show the proper amount of tax due, the Administrator may determine the amount 
of tax appearing to be due the City of Piqua from the taxpayer and shall send to such 
taxpayer and tax practitioner a written statement showing the amount of tax so 
determined, together with interest and penalties thereon, if any. 

 
D. Subject to the consent of the Board of Review and pursuant to the Rules and 

Regulations, the Administrator shall have the power to compromise any interest or 
penalty, or both, imposed by Section 10 of this ordinance. 

 
 

Section 9:  Investigative Powers of the Administrator 
Penalty for Divulging Confidential Information 

 
A. The Administrator, or any authorized employee, is hereby authorized to examine the 

books, papers, records and Federal Income tax returns of any employer or of any 
taxpayer or person subject to, or whom the Administrator believes is subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance, for the purpose of verifying the accuracy of any return 
made, or, if no return was made, to ascertain the tax due under this ordinance. 

 



 15

Every such employer, supposed employer, taxpayer or supposed taxpayer is hereby 
directed and required to furnish upon written request by the Administrator, or the 
Administrator’s duly authorized agent or employee, the means, facilities and 
opportunity for making such examinations and investigations are hereby authorized. 

 
B. The Administrator is hereby authorized to order any person presumed to have 

knowledge of the facts to appear before the Administrator and may examine such 
person, under oath, concerning any income which was or should have been returned 
for taxation or any transaction tending to affect such income, and for this purpose 
may compel the production of books, papers, records and Federal Income Tax returns 
and the attendance of all persons before the Administrator, whether as parties or 
witnesses, whenever the Administrator believes such persons have knowledge of such 
income or information pertinent to such inquiry. 

 
C. The refusal to produce books, papers, records and Federal Income Tax returns, or the 

refusal to submit to such examination by any employer or person subject or presumed 
to be subject to the tax, or by any officer, agent or employee of a person subject to the 
tax or required to withhold tax, or the failure of any person to comply with the 
provisions of this Section or with an order or subpoena of the Administrator 
authorized hereby, shall be deemed a violation of this ordinance punishable as 
provided in Section 12 hereof. 

 
D. Any information gained, as the result of any returns, investigations, hearings or 

verifications required or authorized by this ordinance shall be confidential, except for 
official purposes, or except in accordance with proper judicial order.  Any person 
divulging such information in violation of this ordinance shall upon conviction 
thereof, be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine or penalty 
of not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisoned for not more than six 
(6) months, or both.  Each disclosure shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
In addition to the above penalty, any employee of the City of Piqua who violates the 
provision of this Section relative to the disclosure of confidential information shall be 
guilty of an offense punishable by immediate dismissal. 

 
E. Every taxpayer shall retain all records necessary to compute his or her tax liability for 

a period of six (6) years from the date his or her return is filed, or the withholding 
taxes are paid. 

 
 

Section 10: Interest and Penalties 
 
A. All taxes imposed and all monies withheld or required to be withheld by employers 

under the provisions of this ordinance and remaining unpaid after they become due 
shall bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month. 

 



 16

B. In addition to interest as provided in paragraph A hereof, penalties based on the 
unpaid tax are hereby imposed as follows: 

 
1. For failure to pay taxes due, a penalty of one percent (1%) per month with a 

maximum of twenty-five percent (25%) of the net tax liability and with an annual 
minimum $20.  The $20 minimum is waived for first-time filers and if taxes are 
paid within two weeks of filing. 

 
2. For failure to remit taxes withheld or required to be withheld from employees:  

Three percent (3%) per month. 
 

3. Where the taxpayer has failed to file a return by the due date or by the date 
resulting from extension, a failure to file fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) may 
be assessed.   

 
4. Where the employer has failed to file monthly or quarterly returns by the due 

dates, a failure to file fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) may be assessed per each 
return. 

 
 
C. EXCEPTIONS 

 
1. A penalty shall not be assessed on an additional tax assessment made by the 

Administrator when a return has been filed in good faith and the tax paid thereon 
within the time prescribed by the Administrator, or filed in accordance with 
Article VII, Section C of the Rules and Regulations; and provided further, that in 
the absence of fraud, neither penalty nor interest shall be assessed on any 
additional tax assessment resulting from a federal audit, providing an amended 
return is filed and the additional tax is paid within three (3) months after final 
determination of the federal tax liability. 

 
2. The city shall not impose any penalty, interest, or other similar assessment or 

charge against a taxpayer for the late payment or nonpayment of estimated tax 
liability in either of the following circumstances: 

 
(a) The taxpayer is an individual who resides in the city but was not domiciled 

there on the first day of January of the current calendar year; 
 

(b) The taxpayer has timely remitted an amount at least equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the taxpayer’s tax liability for the preceding year as shown 
on the return filed by the taxpayer for the preceding year, provided that the 
return for the preceding year reflected a twelve-month period and taxpayer 
filed a return for the preceding year. 

 
D. A return check fee will be assessed in an amount set periodically in the Rules and 

Regulations promulgated by the Tax Administrator. 



 17

 
E. Upon recommendation of the Administrator, the Board of Review may abate penalty 

or interest, or both, or upon an appeal from the refusal of the Administrator to 
recommend abatement of penalty and interest, the Board may nevertheless abate 
penalty or interest, or both. 

 
 

Section 11: Collection of Unpaid Taxes and Refunds of Overpayment 
 

A. All taxes imposed by this ordinance shall be collectible, together with any interest and 
penalties thereon, by suit, as other debts of like amounts are recoverable.  Except in 
the case of fraud, omission of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of income subject to 
this tax, or failure to file a return, an additional assessment shall not be made after 
three (3) years from the time the return was due or filed, whichever is later.  In the 
case of fraud, omission of 25% or more of income subject to this tax, or failure to file 
a return, all additional assessments shall be made and all prosecutions to recover 
Piqua’s income taxes and penalties and interest thereon shall be brought within six (6) 
years after the tax was due or the return was filed, whichever is later.  In those cases 
in which the Commissioner of Internal Revenue and the taxpayer have executed a 
waiver of the federal statute of limitation, the period within which an additional 
assessment may be made by the Administrator shall be one (1) year from the time of 
the final determination of the federal tax liability. 

 
B. Those officers or employees having control or supervision of, or charged with, the 

responsibility of filing the return and making payments for a corporation or 
association shall be personally liable for failure to file the return or pay the taxes and 
penalties and interest due as required.  The dissolution, bankruptcy, or reorganization 
of any employer does not discharge the officers’ or employees’ liability for a prior 
failure of such business to file a return or pay the taxes due. 

 
C. Taxes erroneously paid shall not be refunded unless a claim for refund is made within 

three (3) years from the date which such payment was made or the return was due, or 
within three (3) months after final determination of the federal tax liability, whichever 
is later. 

 
D. Amounts of less than five dollars ($5.00) shall not be collected or refunded. 
 
 

Section 12: Violations – Penalties 
 

A. Any person who shall: 
 

1. Fail, neglect or refuse to make any return or declaration required by this 
ordinance; or 
 

2. Make any incomplete, false or fraudulent return; or 



 18

 
3. Fail, neglect or refuse to pay the tax, penalties or interest imposed by this 

ordinance; or 
 

4. Fail, neglect or refuse to withhold the tax from his employees or remit such 
withholding to the Administrator; or 

 
5. Refuse to permit the Administrator or any duly authorized agent or employee to 

examine his or her books, records, papers and Federal Income Tax returns relating 
to the income or net profits of a taxpayer; or 
 

6. Fail to appear before the Administrator and to produce his or her books, records, 
papers or Federal Income Tax returns relating to the income or net profits of a 
taxpayer upon order or subpoena of the Administrator; or 

 
7. Refuse to disclose to the Administrator any information with respect to the 

income or net profits of a taxpayer; or 
 

8. Fail to comply with the provisions of this ordinance, the Rules and Regulations or 
any order or subpoena of the Administrator authorized hereby; or 

 
9. Give to an employer false information as to his or her true name, correct Social 

Security number and residence address, or fail to promptly notify an employer of 
any change in residence address and date thereof; or 

 
10. Fail to use ordinary diligence in maintaining proper records of employees’ 

residence addresses, total wages paid and City of Piqua tax withheld, or to 
knowingly give the Administrator false information; or 

 
11. Attempt to do anything whatever to avoid the payment of the whole or any part of 

the tax, penalties or interest imposed by this ordinance. 
 
Shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined not more than five hundred dollars 
($500.00) or imprisoned not more than six (6) months or both, for each offense. 
 
B. All prosecutions under this Section must be commenced within three (3) years from 

the time to the offense complained of except in the case of failure to file a return or in 
the case of filing a false or fraudulent return, in which event the limitation of time 
within which prosecution must be commenced shall be six (6) years from the date the 
return was due or the date the false or fraudulent return was filed. 

 
C. The failure of any employer or person to receive or procure a return declaration or 

other required form shall not excuse him or her from making any information return, 
return or declaration, from filing such form, or from paying the tax. 

 
 



 19

Section 13:  Board of Review 
 
A. A Board of Review, consisting of the City Manager, who shall act as chairman, and 

two other individuals, each to be appointed by the Mayor of the City of Piqua, is 
hereby created. A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.  
The Board shall adopt its own procedural rules and shall keep a record of its 
transactions.  Any hearing by the Board may be conducted privately and the 
provisions of Section 9 hereof, with reference to the confidential character of 
information required to be disclosed by this ordinance, shall apply to such matters as 
may be heard before the Board of Review. 

 
B. All Rules and Regulations and amendments or changes thereto, which are adopted by 

the Administrator under the authority conferred by this ordinance, must be approved 
by the Board of Review before the same become effective.  The Board shall hear and 
pass on appeals from any ruling or decision of the Administrator, and, at the request 
of the taxpayer or Administrator, is empowered to substitute alternate methods of 
allocation. 

 
C. Any person dissatisfied with any ruling or decision of the Administrator, which is 

made under the authority conferred by this ordinance, may appeal therefrom to the 
Board of Review within thirty (30) days from the announcement of such ruling or 
decision by the Administrator provided the taxpayer making the appeal has filed with 
the City of Piqua the required return or other documents concerning the obligation at 
issue.  The appeal shall be in writing and shall state why the decision should be 
deemed incorrect or unlawful.  The Board shall, on hearing, have jurisdiction to 
affirm, reverse or modify any such ruling or decision, or any part thereof. 

 
 

Section 14: Use of Funds 
 

The total income tax funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance shall be held 
by the Director of Finance in a separate fund known as the “INCOME TAX FUND” and 
shall be deposited in a separate account, or accounts, in such bank or banks, as the 
Director in his or her sole discretion may decide. 
 
Relating to the first one percent (1%), not less than twenty-eight percent (28%) shall be 
used for the construction, operation and maintenance of streets, including the draining 
thereof.  Not less than twenty-one percent (21%) shall be used for permanent 
improvements and operation of the Safety Department.  Not less than seven percent (7%) 
shall be used for permanent improvements and operation of City parks.  Not more than 
forty-four percent (44%) shall be used for General Fund purposes, other than those listed 
above, and for the purpose of paying the cost of collecting the tax levied by this 
ordinance and the cost of administering and enforcing the provisions thereof. 
 



 20

The funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance relating to the next one-half 
percent (.5%) levy in excess of one percent (1%) shall be used entirely for capital and 
operating needs of police, fire and public safety-related services. 
 
The funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance relating to the remaining one-
fourth percent (.25%) levy shall be used entirely for the construction, reconstruction and 
resurfacing of streets and alleys, including the installation, maintenance and 
reconstruction of storm drainage lines, manholes and catch basins. 
 
 

Section 15: Relief and Reciprocity Provisions 
 
It is the intent of this section that a taxpayer, subject to tax in more than one municipality 
on the same income, who has complied with the provisions hereof, shall not be required 
by this ordinance to pay a total municipal income tax on such income greater than the tax 
imposed at the higher rate. 
 
A. When a resident of Piqua is subject to and has paid, or has acknowledged liability for, 

a municipal income tax in another municipality on the same income taxable under 
this ordinance, and such other municipality does not allow a credit to its non-
residents, such Piqua resident may claim a credit of the amount of such tax paid to 
such other municipality, but not in excess of the tax assessed by this ordinance. 

 
B. The City of Piqua shall grant a credit against the tax imposed by this ordinance to 

every taxpayer who works in a joint economic development zone created under 
section 715.691 or a joint economic development district created under section 
715.70, 715.71, or 715.72 of the Ohio Revised Code.  The credit shall not exceed the 
tax assessed by this ordinance on such income earned in such joint economic 
development zone or joint economic development district where such tax is paid. 
 

 
Section 16: Saving Clause 

 
If any sentence, clause, section or part of this ordinance, or any tax against any individual 
or any of the several groups specified herein, is found to be unconstitutional, illegal or 
invalid, such unconstitutionality, illegality or invalidity shall affect only such clause, 
sentence, section or part of this ordinance and shall not affect or impair any of the 
remaining provisions, sentences, clauses, sections or other parts of this ordinance.  It is 
hereby declared to be the intention of the Commission of the City of Piqua that this 
ordinance would have been adopted had such unconstitutional, illegal or invalid sentence, 
clause, section or part thereof not been included herein. 

 
 
 
 
 



 21

Section 17: Exclusions From Taxation 
 
The provisions of this Ordinance shall not be construed as levying a tax upon the 
following: 
 
A. Military pay or allowances of members of the Armed Forces of the United States and 

of members of their reserve components, including the National Guard. 
 

B. Poor relief, pensions, including Social Security benefits, unemployment 
compensation or similar payments, including disability benefits received from private 
industry or local, state or federal governments, or from charitable, religious or 
educational organizations. 

 
C. Alimony received 
 
D. Dues, contributions and similar payments received by charitable, religious, 

educational or literary organizations or labor unions, lodges and similar organizations. 
 
E. Any charitable, educational, fraternal or other type of non-profit association or 

organization enumerated in Section 718.01 of the Revised Code of Ohio, which is 
exempt from payment of real estate taxes, is exempt from payment of the tax imposed 
by this ordinance. 
 
a. Any association or organization falling in the category listed in the preceding 

paragraph not exempt from the payment of real estate taxes is required to file 
declarations and final returns and remit the taxes levied under this ordinance on 
all business activities of a type ordinarily conducted for profit by taxpayers 
operating for profit. 

 
b. Where such non-profit association or organization conducts income-producing 

business, both within and without the corporate limits, it shall calculate its profits 
allocable to the City of Piqua under the method or methods provided above. 

 
F. Any association, organization, corporation, club or trust, which is exempt from 

federal taxes on income by reason of its charitable, religious, educational, literacy, 
scientific, etc. purposes. 
 

G. Gains from involuntary conversion and capital gains, cancellation of indebtedness, 
interest on federal obligations, items of income already taxed by the State of Ohio, as 
of the date of enactment of Ordinance 33-66 (being 7/5/66), and income of a 
decedent’s estate during the period of administration (except such income from the 
operation of a business). 

 
H. Earnings and income of all persons 17 years of age and under.  Earnings and income 

will be taxable for the portion of the year after which they become 18. 
 



 22

I. Parsonage allowance, to the extent of the rental allowance or rental value of a house 
provided as a part of an ordained minister’s compensation.  The minister must be duly 
ordained, commissioned or licensed by a religious body constituting a church or 
church denomination. 

 
J. Compensation paid under section 3501.28 or 3501.36 of the Revised Code to a person 

serving as a precinct election official, to the extent that such compensation does not 
exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) annually. 

 
K. Intangible income. 
 
L. The income of a public utility, when that public utility is subject to the tax levied 

under Section 5727.24 or 5727.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, except a municipal 
corporation may tax the following, subject to Chapter 5745 of the Ohio Revised 
Code: 

 
a. The income of an electric company or combined company; 

 
b. The income of a telephone company. 

 
As used in Section 17 (L) of this ordinance, “combined company”, “electric 
company”, and “telephone company” have the same meanings as in Section 
5727.01 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
M. The City of Piqua shall not tax the compensation paid to a nonresident individual for 

personal services performed by the individual in the City of Piqua on twelve (12) or 
fewer days in a calendar year unless one of the following applies: 
 
a. The individual is an employee of another person, the principal place of business 

of the individual’s employer is located in another municipality in Ohio that 
imposes a tax applying to compensation paid to the individual for services paid on 
those days; and the individual is not liable to that other municipality for tax on the 
compensation paid for such services. 

 
b. The individual is a professional entertainer or professional athlete, the promoter of 

a professional entertainment or sports event, or an employee of such promoter, all 
as may be reasonably defined by the City of Piqua. 

 
 

Section 18: Collection of Tax After Termination of Ordinance 
 
A. This ordinance shall continue effective insofar as the levy of taxes is concerned 

until repealed by the electorate, and insofar as the collection of taxes levied 
hereunder and actions or proceedings for collecting any tax so levied or enforcing 
any provisions of this ordinance are concerned, it shall continue effective until all 
of said taxes levied in the aforesaid period are fully paid and any and all suits and 



 23

prosecutions for the collection of said taxes or for the punishment of violations of 
this ordinance shall have been fully terminated, subject to the limitations 
contained in Sections 11 and 12 hereof. 

 
B. Annual returns due for all or any part of the last effective year of this ordinance 

shall be due on the date provided in Sections 5 and 6 of this ordinance as though 
the same were continuing. 

 
SECTION 2: Ordinances 33-66, 18-67, 26-71, 28-71, 10-76, 67-78, 76-79, 24-83, 36-
84, 29-88, 20-89, 84-89, 18-90, 7-97, 34-00, 39-00, 27-02, 20-03, and 22-04, and 25-
08 as previously enacted, are hereby repealed; 
 
SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force beginning January 1, 
2009 2011. 
 
1st Reading 1-4-2011 
 
 
PASSED: ____________________                                                           
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
ATTEST: ____________________ 

REBECCA J. COOL 
CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO. R-6-11 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A LABOR CONTRACT WITH THE  

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE (CIVILIANS),  
OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has negotiated a bargaining unit contract 
with the FOP/OLC (Civilians), and 
 
 WHEREAS, FOP/OLC voted upon and ratified the collective bargaining 
agreement on January 10, 2011 as attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said contract is just and reasonable and in the best interest of the 
City and its employees;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1: The bargaining unit contract between the City and the Fraternal 
Order of Police (Civilians), Ohio Labor Council, Inc. to be in effect from January 1, 2011 
through December 31, 2013, inclusive is hereby approved, and the City Manager is 
hereby authorized to execute said contract on behalf of this Commission; 
 
 SEC 2:  This Resolution and the wages included will replace the wages of 
the bargaining unit employees listed on Schedule A, Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code; 
 
 SEC 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
            
     LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 



















































































RESOLUTION NO. R-7-11 
                  
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JULIA (JUDY) TERRY TO 
THE GROW PIQUA NOW BOARD 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that:  

 
 SEC. 1: Julia (Judy) Terry is hereby reappointed as a member of the 
Grow Piqua Now Board for a term of (3) years to expire on December 31, 2013, or 
until her successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-8-11 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                             ENERGY BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Sharon L. Lyons is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term 
of Brian Kellogg as a member of the Energy Board for a term to expire on February 
28, 2015 or until her successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R- 9-11 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                       PUBLIC SERVICE OF RICK MAGGERT AS 
                                                        A CITY EMPLOYEE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Rick Maggert has retired as Assistant Fire Chief with the Piqua Fire 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 35 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of Rick Maggert 
as a Assistant Fire Chief, this Commission tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by 
this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-10-11 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REQUEST THE MIAMI COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTIONS TO 
SET A SPECIAL ELECTION ON MARCH 1, 2011 FOR THE PURPOSE OF A 

RECALL ELECTION FOR COMMISSIONER LUCINDA L. FESS, 
 COMMISSIONER WILLIAM VOGT, COMMISSIONER JOE WILSON AND 

COMMISSIONER JULIA TERRY 
  

WHEREAS, a committee of citizens circulated petitions pursuant to City Charter Section 
120 seeking the recall of Commissioner Lucinda L. Fess, Commissioner William Vogt, 
Commissioner Joe Wilson and Commissioner Julia Terry; and  
 

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2010, said petitions were submitted to the City 
Commission Clerk; and   
 

WHEREAS, on December 30, 2010, the Miami County Board of Elections verified the 
required minimum number of signatures needed for recall petitions; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission Clerk notified the four commissioners of the verified 

recall petitions and all four commissioners declined resigning from their position; and  
 
WHEREAS, Charter Section 122 requires the City Commission to set the date of a 

Special Election for the purpose of the recall election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 

County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. The City Commission requests that the Miami County Board of Elections 
set a Special Election for March 1, 2011, for the purpose of the recall election of 
Commissioner Lucinda L. Fess, Commissioner William Vogt, Commissioner Joe Wilson and 
Commissioner Julia Terry. 
  
SECTION 2. The City Director of Law shall prepare the exact language to be placed on 
the ballot as governed by Section 124 of the Piqua City Charter. 
 
SECTION 3.   The Commission Clerk shall send a certified copy of this Resolution to the 
Miami County Board of Elections. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest period 
allowed by law. 

               
        _______________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
      REBECCA J. COOL 
           CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



 
 
For Regular Meeting of City Commission 
January 18, 2011 
 
 
To: Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
From: Stacy M. Wall, Law Director 
 
Date: January 10, 2011 
 
Re: Special Election 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To set a special election date for the purpose of a recall of four city 
commissioners. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To adopt the Resolution setting the special election date as March 1, 2011.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A group of citizens circulated a petition for the recall of four commissioners.  Per 
the Charter, the Clerk issues the petition and the Board of Election certifies 
whether there are 1,000 valid signatures from registered voters of Piqua.  The 
original petition did not contain the required number of signatures but the Charter 
permits a 10 day correction period where supplemental petitions can be 
circulated.  The committee circulated supplemental petitions and submitted them 
for validation on December 27, 2010.  The Board of Elections certified enough 
signatures to satisfy the requirement of 1,000 signatures per petition.  On 
December 30, 2010, the City Clerk notified each commissioner subjected to the 
recall that he or she had five days to resign.  Since none of the commissioners 
resigned, Charter Section 122 requires the Commission to set a special election 
date between 40 and 60 days after the Commission has been notified.  
Therefore, the election should be set between February 13th and March 5th.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
The Commission could select a different date other than the proposed March 1 
for the election. 
 
 



 
DISCUSSION: 
 
It is recommended that the resolution be adopted with a March 1st Special 
Election date.  March 1st is the first Tuesday of the month, which is the day 
elections are traditionally held.  This may avoid confusion as to when the election 
is.  March 1st also allows for the necessary time for the Board of Elections to 
prepare for an election.  The Board of Elections has indicated that it needs at 
least 30 days to prepare. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is a financial impact from holding a special election.  However, an 
estimated cost of the election was included in the 2011 budget and the resolution 
is not to decide whether to have an election, it is only to set the date for the 
election. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 
The resolution is in compliance with the Charter.  The Charter mandates a 
special election be held and this resolution is the next step which requires the 
Commission to set the date of the election. 
 




